EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL COUNCIL MINUTES

Committee:	Area Planning Sub-Committee East	Date:	9 Febru	ary 2022		
Place:	Council Chamber - Civic Offices	Time:	7.00 - 7	7.35 pm		
Members Present:	Councillors P Keska (Chairman), H Brady (Vice-Chairman), R Balcombe, P Bolton, L Burrows, I Hadley, S Jones, C McCredie, J McIvor, R Morgan, P Stalker, B Vaz, H Whitbread and J M Whitehouse					
Apologies:	Councillors N Bedford, J Philip, B Rolfe, C Whitbread and J H Whitehouse					
Officers Present:	J Leither (Democratic Services Communications Officer)	G Officer)	and	N Cole	(Corporate	
Officers Virtual Attendance:	J Rogers (principal Planning Officer), G Courtney (Principal Planning Officer and A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer)					

84. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council's Protocol for Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

85. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

86. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2022 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

87. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made pursuant to the Council's Members' Code of Conduct.

88. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-Committee.

89. EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL PLANNING POLICY BRIEFING NOTE (OCTOBER 2021)

It was noted that the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version Planning Policy Briefing note was available at: <u>http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wpcontent/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-Briefing-Note_Mar-2018.pdf</u>

90. SITE VISITS

Councillor H Whitbread proposed a site visit for item 10 and 11 on the agenda, EPF/2438/19 – Wyldingtree, 66 The Plain, Epping CM16 6TW and EPF/0384/21 – Wyldingtree, 66 The Plain, Epping CM16 6TW, which was seconded by Councillor L Burrows.

AGREED:

That the Sub-Committee agreed in favour of a site visit.

91. PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/0073/19 LAND ADJACENT BROOK COTTAGE, SCHOOL LANE, ABBESS BEAUCHAMP AND BERNERS RODING, ONGAR CM5 0NY

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0073/19
SITE ADDRESS:	Land adjacent Brook Cottage School Lane Abbess Beauchamp And Berners Roding Ongar Essex CM5 0NY
PARISH:	The Rodings - Abbess, Beauchamp and Berners
WARD:	High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Residential development to create x 4 no. new dwellings and four garages.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=619215

CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
- 2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and retained strictly in accordance with the following approved plans:

Drawing 1085.20 - Location Plan Drawing 1085.21 - Floor Plans Drawing 1085.22 - Elevations Drawing 1085.23 - Garage Plan and Elevations Drawing 1085.24 - Existing and Proposed Street Scenes Drawing 1085.25 - Site Plan Design and Access Statement, JSP. Appendix A - Pre-app layout drawing. Arboricultural Planning Report (Impact Assessment and Method Statement), Tracy Clarke, December 2018. Tree Survey - Drawing number TCTC-19417-PL-01 dated December 2018. Proposed Layout - Drawing number TCTC-19417-PL-02 dated December 2018. Tree Protection Plan - Drawing number TCTC-19417-PL-03 dated December 2018. Landscape and Maintenance Schedule Low Impact EcIA, Hybrid Ecology Ltd, 15 October 2018. Phase I Geo-Environmental Desk Study, eps, 15 February 2019. SuDS Statement and Drainage Strategy, EAS, October 2018 (Rev B, 23/04/19).

- 3 Prior to any above ground works, documentary and photographic details of the type and colours of the external finishes of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 4 No deliveries, external running of plant and equipment or demolition and construction works, other than internal works not audible outside the site boundary, shall take place on the site other than between the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 on Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturday and not at all on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.
- 5 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:
 - 1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
 - 2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
 - 3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate

5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including wheel washing.

6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works.

7. Tree protection measures.

- 6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally permitted by virtue of Class A, B, E, F of Part1, and Class A and B of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.
- 7 Prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted the windows in the flank elevations at first floor level and above, shall have been fitted with obscure glass with a minimum privacy level 3 obscurity, and no part of that/those windows that is less than 1.7 metres above the internal floor level of the room in which it is installed shall be capable of being opened. Once installed the obscure glass shall be retained thereafter.

- 8 Prior to first occupation of the development herby permitted a plan indicating the position, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected, shall have been submitted to an approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved boundary treatment shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the development and thereafter permanently retained.
- 9 Prior to first occupation of the development, measures shall be incorporated within the development to ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.
- 10 Prior to preliminary ground works taking place, details of foul and surface water disposal shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, and shall be provided on site prior to the first occupation and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development.
- 11 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the flood risk assessment (EAS Flood risk assessment and Drainage Strategy, Ref 1970/2018-B, April 2019) and drainage strategy submitted with the application unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
- 12 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in the submitted Arboricultural reports is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies, or becomes severely damaged or diseased during development activities or within 3 years of the completion of the development, another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 months at the same place. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the same place.
- Prior to any above ground works, full details of both hard and soft landscape 13 works (including tree planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of the building or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. The hard landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place.
- 14 Non-standard condition The soft landscaping to the south boundaries of the site shall consist of a planting strip of a minimum width of 3metres with garden fences on the inside edge. The landscaping shall consist of trees / hedges of native species. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a

period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in writing.

- 15 Tree protection shall be implemented prior to the commencement of development activities (including demolition) in accordance with the submitted Tree Survey/ Arboricultural Method Statement reports unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written approval to any alterations. Tree protection shall be installed as shown on Tracy Clarke Tree Consultancy Tree Protection Plan drawing number TCTC-19417-PL03 dated December 2018.
- 16 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating uses having been identified for this site. Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the local planning authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and/or the adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the recommencement of development works. In such instances, following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no unexpected contamination was encountered.
- 17 Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle parking, garages and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking, garages and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose. Reason: To ensure that appropriate access, parking and turning is provided.
- 18 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access within 6 metres of the highway boundary. Reason: To avoid displacement of loose material onto the highway in the interests of highway safety.
- 19 Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the back edge of the carriageway. Reason: To enable vehicles using the access to stand clear of the carriageway whilst gates are being opened and closed in the interest of highway safety.
- 20 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

The above measures are to ensure that this proposal is not contrary to the Highway Authority's Development Management Policies, adopted as County Council Supplementary Guidance in February 2011, policies ST4 & ST6 of the Local Plan and policy T1 of the Local Plan Submission Version 2017.

21 Prior to any above groundworks, details and location of the parking spaces (including garages) equipped with active and/or passive Electric Vehicle Charging Point(s) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The installation of EVCP shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and made operational prior to first

occupation. The details shall include:

- Location of active and passive charging infrastructure;
- Specification of charging equipment; and
- Operation/management strategy.

The council will expect that a management plan for the charging points is set out clearly. This will address:

a) Which parking bays will have active and/or passive charging provision, including disabled parking bays;

b) How charging point usage will be charged amongst users;

c) The process and the triggers for identifying when additional passive charging points will become activated; and

d) Electricity supply availability. The electricity supply should be already confirmed by the Network Provider so that the supply does not need to be upgraded at a later date.

- 22 Prior to any above groundworks, a strategy to facilitate super-fast broadband for future occupants of the site shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The strategy shall seek to ensure that upon occupation of a dwelling, either a landline or ducting to facilitate the provision of a broadband service to that dwelling from a site-wide network, is in place and provided as part of the initial highway works and in the construction of frontage thresholds to dwellings that abut the highway, unless evidence is put forward and agreed in writing by the LPA that technological advances for the provision of a broadband service for the majority of potential customers will no longer necessitate below ground infrastructure. The development of the site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved strategy.
- 23 Prior to first occupation of the development, a scheme to enhance the ecological value of the site shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The ecological value shall be quantified using the Biodiversity Impact Assessment Calculator (BIAC) where appropriate. The scheme shall be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved.

92. PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/2438/19 WYLDINGTREE, 66 THE PLAIN, EPPING CM16 6TW

APPLICATION No:	EPF/2438/19
SITE ADDRESS:	Wyldingtree 66 The Plain Epping CM16 6TW
PARISH:	Epping
WARD:	Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Demolition of an existing bungalow construction of x3 no. terrace houses and x1 no. chalet-style bungalow with associated parking & gardens.
DECISION:	Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=629199

DEFERRED FOR SITE VISIT

93. PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/0384/21 WYLDINGTREE, 66 THE PLAIN, EPPING CM16 6TW

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0384/21
SITE ADDRESS:	Wyldingtree 66 The Plain Epping CM16 6TW
PARISH:	Epping
WARD:	Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Demolition of existing bungalow and construction of 2x pairs of semi-detached houses with associated parking & gardens (Revised application to EPF/1111/19).
DECISION:	Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=648293

DEFERRED FOR SITE VISIT

CHAIRMAN

This page is intentionally left blank